
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

November 8, 2016 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Nov 8 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 8 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 8 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 15 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 22 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 22 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 22 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov  22 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 
 

B. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 

 
C. SUPERINTENDENT’S STUDENT ADVISORY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 

 

Central High School – Stacy Dibley 
Memorial High School – Krystal Grubb 

 

D. MINUTES - 
October 25, 2016 – Public Work Session 

October 25, 2016 – Regular Board Meeting 
 

E. TREASURER'S REPORT 

 
 Consideration of Claims 

 

 Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 
appreciation of recent donations made to Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

 Permission to Advertise Notice of Additional Appropriation Hearing – The Business 
Office requests permission to advertise for an Additional Appropriation Hearing. 
 

 

REVISED 
11/7/16 



BOARD AGENDA November 8, 2016 
 
 

2 
   

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 
school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 

 
 Extra Curricular Purchase - The Business Office seeks Board approval of an extra-

curricular purchase request. 

 
 Group Medical and Dental Insurance – The administration is recommending 

changes to the 2017 benefit plan. 

 
F. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 Grant Approval – It is recommended the Board approve submission of grants as 
recommended by the administration. 
 

 Grant Confirmation – The administration seeks Board confirmation for grants 
submitted to the Elkhart Education Foundation. 
  

 Overnight Trip Requests - The administration seeks Board approval of overnight 
trip requests. 
 

G. PERSONNEL 
 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 
requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended by 
the administration. 

 
 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 

administration. 

 
H. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 

 

 From Audience 
 

 From Superintendent and Staff 

 
 From Board 

 

I. ADJOURNMENT 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

October 25, 2016 
 
North Side Middle School, 300 Lawrence Street, Elkhart – 5:30 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Tony England Dawn McGrath 
 Tony Gianesi Kevin Scott 
 Doug Hasler Doug Thorne 
 Rob Haworth Bob Woods 
 Brenda Kolbe  
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard an update on the water issues and what had taken place to 
resolve them. Doug Thorne, Executive Director of Personnel & Legal Services, 
and Doug Hasler, Chief Operating Officer, reported on the recent insurance 
meetings and proposed cost and offerings for the upcoming year; and Kevin 
Scott, Chief Financial Officer, addressed the finances in regards to insurance. 

The Board also discussed agenda items for the regular Board meeting. 

 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:05 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



 

MINUTES 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 

October 25, 2016 
 
 

North Side Middle School, 300 Lawrence Street, Elkhart – at 7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 

 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 

   
 

Roll Call 

President Glenn Duncan called the regular meeting of the Board of 

School Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 

Call to 

Order 

Mr. Duncan discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 

 

Protocol 

Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council (SSAC) representatives 
introduced themselves.  Logan Brown, from Central High School (CHS) 

and Khalek Sengsone, a senior from Memorial High School (MHS).  In 
addition to SSAC, Logan Brown is a member of the Student Advisory 
Council (SAC) and a member of the swimming and diving team as a 

diver.  He highlighted the recent sports activities with a second place 
finish for the volleyball team; cheerleaders to participate at semi-state; 
football team starting sectionals; and cross country runner Lauren 

Dibley placing in the top 100 at semi-state. Mr. Brown announced this 
year’s SSAC project will be a Blazer Fest, an event to promote Central 
with booths showcasing clubs, sports teams, and different academic 

departments.  He invited all to attend the Track or Treat being held at 
Central on Thursday evening.  Khalek Sengsone congratulated all the fall 
athletes including four cross country runner who participated in regional 

competition; noted winter sports teams are preparing for their season; 
and reported the band received gold ratings at regionals and semi-state.  
He described the three new clubs formed this year: Future Medical 

Professionals Club led by Keiana Bowie, Computer Science Club led by 
Cole Maddux, and Big Brother/Big Sister Club led by Mr. Sengsone 
created for seniors interested in mentoring freshmen. 

 

SSAC 
Representatives 

The proposed Strategic Plan for 2017-2022 was presented for 

consideration by Superintendent Haworth.  A motion was made and 
seconded.  Board President Glenn Duncan opened the floor for comment 
from the audience.  Twenty-two attendees requested to speak and a 

limit of three minutes was set for each speaker.  Mr. Duncan then 
invited all of the Board members to speak regarding the Plan. 

Strategic Plan 

2017-2022 



2 
 

Board member, Karen Carter, expressed her concerns regarding the 
finances associated with merging the two high schools and as a result 

made a motion to amend the current motion to separate out the high 
school component from the rest of the plan.  There was no second of the 
motion to amend and the motion died for lack of a second. 

 
Glenn Duncan called upon each Board member for their vote on the 
Plan:  Glenn Duncan - yea, Jeri Stahr - yea, Doug Weaver - yea, Karen 

Carter – nay; Susan Daiber – yea; Carolyn Morris - yea and Dorisanne 
Nielsen- yea.  The Board approved the proposed Strategic Plan 2017-
2022 by a vote of six to one.  (Codified File 1617-57) 

 
By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  

October 11, 2016 – Public Work Session 

October 11, 2016 – Regular Board Meeting 
 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 

$5,776,488.34 as shown on the October 25, 2016, claims listing.  
(Codified File 1617-58) 
 

Payment of 

Claims  

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 
donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS):  a golf cart valued 

at $2,200.00 from Phyllis Tubbs to Memorial High School’s athletic 
department; a Pegasus violin valued at $400.00 from Jean Barton to the 
Roosevelt STEAM Academy for a 5th or 6th grade student in need; and 

$500.00 from BABSCO to go towards the purchase of IREAD3 incentives 
for 3rd graders at Monger Elementary. 
 

Gift Acceptance 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 
in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 
activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 

File 1617-59) 
 

Fundraiser 
Approval 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 

accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 
administration on the October 25, 2016 listings. (Codified File 1617-60) 
 

Conference 

Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 
recommendations of the administration: 

Personnel 
Report 

Resignation of the following two (2) certified staff members 

effective on dates indicated: 
Melissa Cutcliffe – behavior support at ESC, 10/21/16 
Michelle McClintic – grade 5 at Osolo, 11/4/16 

 

Certified 

Resignation 
 

Maternity leave for the following two (2) certified staff members, 
on dates indicated: 

Victoria Culp - grade 1 at Eastwood, beginning 11/7/16 
and ending 11/8/16 
Tracey Whitmyer - assistant principal at Beck, beginning 

12/1/16 and ending 12/16/16 

Certified Leave 



3 
 

Change from resignation to retirement for certified staff member, 
Robyn Hill, grade 1 at Eastwood, with 15 years of service, at the 

end of the 2015-2016 school year. 
 

Classified 
Change to 

Resignation 

Regular employment of the following nine (9) classified 

employees, who have successfully completed their probationary 
periods, on dates indicated: 

Loretta Champlin - food service Daly,10/13/16 

Curbiee Coleman - paraprofessional at Tipton, 10/24/16 
Lori Elliott - secretary at EACC, 10/24/16 
Maria Gonzalez - paraprofessional at Riverview, 10/14/16 

Connie Jones - food service at Beardsley, 10/24/16 
Bethany Mowery - secretary at Hawthorne, 10/14/16 
Deondra Nelson - food service at Woodland, 10/24/16 

Demetrius Pegues - academic trainer at Beck, 10/12/16 
Ana Victoria Santos - secretary at Pinewood, 10/17/16 
 

Classified  

Employment 

Resignation of the following two (2) classified employees effective 
on dates indicated: 

Robert Henning - WVPE program director at EACC, 10/16/16 

Barbara White - food service at Commissary, 7/21/16 
 

Classified  
Resignation 
 

Termination of classified employee, Michelle Daniels, food service 
at Beck, in accordance with Board Policy GDPD 1, c, g. 

 

Classified 
Termination 
 

Termination of classified employee, Richard Hooven, bus driver at 
Transportation, in accordance with Board Policy GDPD 1, a, c, g. 

 

Classified 
Termination 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved overnight trip requests for the 
Motorcycle/Outdoor Power Tech, Hot Rodders of Tomorrow team from 
EACC to travel to Indianapolis, IN on December 6 thru 10, for Hot 

Rodders of Tomorrow PRI Championship competition; and 7th and 8th 
grade social studies students from Pierre Moran to travel to Washington, 
DC and Gettysburg, PA on May 25 thru May 29, 2017, for US history 

curriculum. 
 

Overnight Bus 
Trips 
 

  



4 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 9:30 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
  ____________________________________ 
  Glenn L. Duncan, President 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 

 
  _____________________  ______________ 
  Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

Signatures 

 





















 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Haworth 

  Board of school trustees 

   

From: Kevin scott 

 
Date:  November 3, 2016  

 

Subject/  extra curricular purchase 

The Business Office recommends Board approval of purchase of the following items from 
extra-curricular funds: 
 
SCHOOL/ACCOUNT       ITEM           AMOUNT 

 
 

EMHS Extra Curricular  2 88-key Williams Digital Pianos  $700.00 

                                                       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

November 3, 2016 

 

To:   board of school trustees 

  Dr. haworth 

     

From: douglas a. hasler 

 
Date:  November 3, 2016  

 

Subject: 2017 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PLAN 

 In recent weeks, the Insurance Committee has met and finalized a recommendation for changes in the 

2017 Employee Benefits Plan.  Those recommendations, effective for the 2017 plan year, are as follows: 

 

 To implement a 4-tier coverage structure (including coverage for an employee, employee/spouse, 

employee/child(ren), and family) 

 To establish co-insurance on High Deductible Health Plans (HDHP) 1, 2, and 3 based on 80% 

plan/20% employee cost-sharing between the deductible and the out-of-pocket maximum 

 To allow employees the option of purchasing additional life insurance at their own cost 

 

With the implementation of the 4-tier coverage structure, the Insurance Committee believes that it would 

be appropriate to move forward with implementation of a spousal exclusion provision effective not sooner 

than January 1, 2018. 

 

Based on claims experience through the month of September 2016, and after accounting for the 

introduction of co-insurance into HDHP 1, 2, and 3, the total cost of the plan is anticipated to increase by 

approximately 2.3% in 2017.  The Administration is committed to making the ECS benefits plan as 

affordable to eligible employees as possible.  Accordingly, the Administration is recommending that 

additional school funds, estimated to be approximately $719,000, be committed to reducing the premium 

costs that employees would otherwise pay in $719,000. 

 

With the actions recommended by the Insurance Committee, and the commitment of additional school 

funds to pay for premium costs, no employee who maintains the same plan option and level of coverage 

would see a premium increase in 2017.  In fact, most employees would realize a reduction in their annual 

premium costs. 

 

This packet includes a copy of the 2017 medical benefit plan design, and rate sheets for classified and 

certified/administrator employee groups. 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

I will be recommending your approval of these recommendations during the November 8th Board meeting.  

If you have any questions concerning this matter prior to Tuesday night, please contact me at 262-5563. 



Elkhart Community School Corporation

Potential Alternative 2017 Plan Design

Plan Design

In-Network Out-Network In-Network Out-Network In-Network Out-Network In-Network Out-Network

Annual Deductible

Single $4,000 $8,000 $5,000 $10,000

Family $8,000 $16,000 $10,000 $20,000

Coinsurance 80%/20% 70%/30% 80%/20% 70%/30% 80%/20% 70%/30% 80%/20% 70%/30%

Out of Pocket Maximum (includes 

deductible)

Single $3,000 $5,000 $4,000 $6,000 $5,000 $16,000 $6,500 $20,000

Family $6,000 $10,000 $7,150 $12,000 $10,000 $32,000 $13,000 $40,000

Office Visits

Primary Care Physician ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins

Specialty Care Physician ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins

Preventive Care 100% coverage ded & coins 100% coverage ded & coins 100% coverage ded & coins 100% coverage ded & coins

Emergency Room

Urgent Care Facility

Prescription Drugs - Retail

Generic ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins

Formulary Brand ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins

Non Formulary Brand ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins

Prescription Drugs - Mail Order

Generic ded & coins not covered ded & coins not covered ded & coins not covered ded & coins not covered

Formulary Brand ded & coins not covered ded & coins not covered ded & coins not covered ded & coins not covered

Non Formulary Brand ded & coins not covered ded & coins not covered ded & coins not covered ded & coins not covered

HDHP 1 HDHP 2 HDHP 3 HDHP 4

2016 Plan Design Offerings

High Deductible/HSA Plan High Deductible/HSA Plan High Deductible/HSA Plan High Deductible/HSA Plan

Embedded

Non-Embedded Non-Embedded Embedded Embedded

$2,000 $3,000

$4,000 $6,000

Non-Embedded Non-Embedded Embedded

ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins

ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins ded & coins

12


























	Agenda
	Minutes - Work Session October 25 2016
	Minutes - Regular Meeting October 25 2016
	Gift Acceptance - EACC
	Gift Acceptance - Roosevelt
	Board Materials_Additional Appropriation_11.08.2016
	Fundraiser
	Extra Curricular Purchase Memo to Board
	Extra Curricular Request
	Employee Benefit Memo
	2017 Medical Benefit Plan Design
	Admin & Certified Rate Sheet
	Grants - Approvals
	Grants - EEF
	Overnight Trip Request
	Conference Leaves - Perkins
	Conference Leaves
	Personnel Report

